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RFP No. 900977, Addendum No. 2

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

ADDENDUM No. 1
to

RFP No. 901453
for

Direct Service Grants: Education and Employment Services
Specification Clarification/Modification and Recap of the Networking/Bidders Conferences

Held on March 16, 2016 and March 17, 2016
	This County of Alameda, General Services Agency (GSA), RFP Addendum has been electronically issued to potential bidders via e-mail.  E-mail addresses used are those in the County’s Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) Vendor Database or from other sources.  If you have registered or are certified as a SLEB, please ensure that the complete and accurate e-mail address is noted and kept updated in the SLEB Vendor Database.  This RFP Addendum will also be posted on the GSA Contracting Opportunities website located at http://www.acgov.org/gsa/purchasing/bid_content/ContractOpportunities.jsp.


Alameda County is committed to reducing environmental impacts across our entire supply chain. 

If printing this document, please print only what you need, print double-sided, and use recycled-content paper.

The following Sections have been modified to read as shown below.  Changes made to the original RFP document are in bold print and highlighted, and deletions made have a strike through.

Responses to Questions

Q1) Does the County plan to award one contractor per service domain or multiple Contractors?
A1) The County intends to award one Contractor per service domain, however the County reserves the right to award multiple Contractors if desired.
Q2) Page 4 of the RFP, Section A (INTENT), states:
In fulfillment of its mandate (see Scope/Background below), the County is soliciting Bidders experienced in the provision of Education and Employment services that utilize best practice models and build strong community-based programs for realigned individuals.

1. Education: The County intends to award a two-year contract (with the option to renew) to the bidder(s) selected as the most responsible bidder(s) whose response conforms to the RFP and meets the County’s requirements.  Up to $1,000,000 is available for the Education services.

2. Employment:  The County intends to award a two-year contract (with the option to renew) to the bidder(s) selected as the most responsible bidder(s) whose response conforms to the RFP and meets the County’s requirements.  Up to $3,000,000 is available for the Employment services.
Doe the County have $1,000,000 allocated for each fiscal year for Education and $1,500,000 allocated for each fiscal year for Employment? 

A2) The County has $1,000,000 available for Education and $3,000,000 available for Employment for the entire term of the contract, which is two years.
Q3) Can the County identify what is considered to be proof of exemption for the SLEB requirement?  Also, what is considered a general qualification for exemption of the SLEB requirement? 
A3) Bidders can find more information regarding entities that are exempt from the SLEB Program on the following link: http://www.acgov.org/auditor/sleb/overview.htm.  Also, Bidders that are 501(c)(3) organizations can provide their tax exempt certification as proof of non-profit status.  
Q4) Do Bidders that are not SLEB certified and are exempt from the SLEB requirement receive SLEB preference points?

A4) No, Bidders that are not SLEB certified and exempt from the SLEB requirement do not receive SLEB preference points.  To receive SLEB preference points, prime Bidders must be certified by the County as a SLEB.  For clarity, non-certified Bidders who are exempt, do not need to subcontract to a certified SLEB.
Q5) How long is the process to become a SLEB? 
A5) The SLEB certification process takes approximately 45 days.  A prime Bidder must be a certified SLEB by the bid response due date, or subcontract at least 20% of the contract with an Alameda County certified SLEB.  To become a certified SLEB vendor with Alameda County, Bidders should contact the Alameda County Auditor Controller Agency - SLEB certification unit. 
Auditor Controller Agency - SLEB Certification Unit 
1106 Madison Street, Room 431 
Oakland, CA 94612 
Telephone: (510) 891-5500 
acslebcertification@acgov.org
Q6) If a prime Bidder decides to subcontract with multiple SLEB vendors, does the Bidder have to submit a separate SLEB Partnering Information Sheet for each subcontractor? 
A6) Yes, prime Bidders should provide a separate signed SLEB Partnering Information Sheet for each SLEB subcontractor.  The prime Bidder will assign the percentage, and make sure it adds up to at least 20%. 
Q7) In regards to the local qualification, is a business license sufficient as opposed to delivering services and not having a primary physical address?

A7) In order to meet the local requirement, Bidders must have a valid business license and have at least 6 months residency in Alameda County.  Bidders must also have a physical presence in the County.  Bidders that are local to Alameda County and that are requesting the 5% preference points, should provide the following documents which are listed on page 3, Item 10 of Exhibit A-BID RESPONSE PACKET of the RFP: 
· Copy of a verifiable business license, issued by the County of Alameda or a City within the County; and
· Proof of six months business residency, identifying the name of the vendor and the local address.  Utility bills, deed of trusts or lease agreements, etc., are acceptable verification documents to prove residency.
Q8) Are Bidders allowed to attach additional documents (e.g., articles about the Bidder’s current programs) to the Strategic Sourcing Supplier Portal as part of the bid proposal?
A8) Bidders may submit additional documents.  However, the County Selection Committee (CSC) will grade Bidders based on what is being asked in the RFP, and as a consequence Bidders should limit their attachments to what is being requested in the RFP.  
Q9) Are there any restrictions on references and current references?  
A9) Yes, Bidders should provide references of similar scope and size to the RFP.  The County does not want references from the individual clients that Bidders serve.  The County is seeking references from organizations with whom Bidders have worked.  A current reference is a reference that Bidders have a current contract with, and contractual obligations with, or who are currently involved with the Bidder’s programs and services.  Bidders should provide references that show their ability to do the work that is being asked on the RFP.  
Q10) On pages 6-7 of Exhibit A-BID RESPONSE PACKET, the Education Services Budget Form does not show the Cost per Client per Service, however the Employment Services Budget Form shows the Cost per Client per Service.  Is there a reason why there is a difference between the two budget forms?
A10) For Education, Bidders should submit a line item budget utilizing the categories and provide the amount; however, for Employment the County is providing the amount and is asking Bidders to let the County know the number of clients the Bidder can serve.
Q11) On pages 6-7 of Exhibit A-BID RESPONSE PACKET of the RFP, the Education Services Budget Form has indirect costs, and the Employment Services Budget Form does not.  Does the Budget Form for Employment have indirect costs built into it?
A11) The Budget forms for Employment services are fully loaded, and they include direct and indirect costs.  Bidders must submit a line item budget for Education proposals.

Q12) Is the cost per client per service rates listed on the Employment Services Budget Form, firm and final?

A12) Yes, these costs are final. 
Q13) Are there any current providers/organizations currently providing the services being requested on the RFP?
A13) The County currently has four Employment providers that are providing very similar services to what is being requested in this RFP.  However, the County does not currently have any Education providers providing the services being requested in this RFP. 
Q14) Is the information being requested on the Employment Services Budget Form the only budget related information the County is asking Bidders to provide? 

A14) Yes, the information being asked on the Employment Services Budget Form is the only budget related information the County is asking Bidders to provide.  Bidders must include in the Budget Detail a breakdown of expenditures within each line item listed in the Budget Form.  
Q15) In regards to the Education Budget Form, can Bidders add sub line items (e.g., stipends) in addition to the line items provided on the budget form?
A15) Bidders should include in their budget any sub line items they have.  Any extra detail about the line items that are listed on the Budget Forms should be included in the Budget Detail.  The Budget Form for Education is located on page 6 of Exhibit A-BID RESPONSE PACKET of the RFP, and Bidders should not create different templates for providing the requested budget information.
Q16) In regards to Employment, can the funds be used directly to participants?  Is there anything preventing funds to go directly to participants?  Are there limitations on stipends and subsidies?
A16) In regards to Employment, the primary goal of this RFP is to place participants in long term, sustainable, full or part-time, paid employment with a range of benefits (medical, dental, retirement, etc.) to support client’s movement toward self-sufficiency.  Funds can be given directly to participants in the form of stipends.  There are no restrictions on stipends.  If Bidders plan to provide stipends to participants, they should include how they plan to do so in the Budget Detail.  Bidders should keep in mind that the costs listed on the budget form are fully loaded and should include taxes and all other charges.  Page 7 of Exhibit A – BID RESPONSE PACKET, states:

2Cost for each service shall include all taxes and all other charges (including, but not limited to, travel expenses, meals, administrative costs, etc.).  Additionally, costs listed in the Fee Schedule above shall include the following (as described in this RFP under SECTION F:  EMPLOYMENT REQUIREMENTS):

1. Job Search Assistance:  

a. Contractor shall assist participants in determining a realistic and appropriate career path, and equip participants with skills such as interviewing and résumé writing that are necessary to obtain employment.

b. Contractor shall provide employment preparation and job placement, retention and advancement services, including assistance obtaining documents necessary for employment.

c. Contractor shall provide assistance with job applications and job search.

2. Contractor shall network with the appropriate range of multidisciplinary service providers with services that also support successful employment outcomes. This includes working collaboratively with deputy probation officers (DPOs) and/or case management service providers that will be in place and under contract with ACPD.
Q17) Some items listed under Required Documentation and Submittals, which can be found on pages 8-11 of Exhibit A-BID RESPONSE PACKET of the RFP, have restrictions on page limit. Are there any other page restrictions besides the ones listed on the Required Documentation and Submittals section of EXHIBIT A-BID RESPONSE PACKET? 
A17) No, the only page restrictions are included in the Required Documentation and Submittals which is located on pages 8-11 of Exhibit A-BID RESPONSE PACKET of the RFP.
Q18) Page 11 of Exhibit A-BID RESPONSE PACKET, Required Documentation and Submittals, item 7.i., states:



Description of Proposed Services (not to exceed 6 pages):  Bidder shall describe the overall program, as well as the terms and conditions of services during the contract term.  The Bidder must address how they will achieve each requirement listed in the GENERAL REQUIREMENTS and each of the domain specific requirements (either EDUCATION or EMPLOYMENT) as appropriate.  

The Description of Proposed Services must also address the following:

(i) Bidders must provide a Table of Facilities to be used.  The table must indicate the address of each facility in Alameda County, which region(s) the facility will service, and which services are to be provided at each facility.
Is the Table of Facilities counted as part of the 6 pages, or separate?
A18) No, the Table of Facilities is not counted in the page limitation.
Q19) How will the County Evaluate the Description of Proposed Services that is listed under the Required Documentation and Submittals in conjunction with the Evaluation Criteria table?  Are all Required Documentation and Submittals going to be used as a whole when the CSC evaluates the bid responses based on what is included in the Evaluation Criteria table?
A19) The County will look at the bid responses as a whole in order to evaluate the different criteria listed in the Evaluation Criteria table included in the RFP.  Bidders should address in their bid proposals all the elements listed in the Evaluation Criteria table.
Q20) Can the County provide a timeframe of when it will contact the references provided by the Bidder?  
A20) The County contacts the references approximately one week before the vendor interviews.  The vendor interviews for this RFP are scheduled for May 5-6, 2016.  If a shortlist is used, the County will only contact vendors that make the shortlist.  
Q21) Do Bidders have to provide the references in their original bid proposal?
A21) Yes, Bidders have to include references in their bid proposal.
Q22) If a Bidder is submitting a bid proposal for both Employment and Education, does the Bidder have to submit a different bid proposal for each service domain?  
A22) Yes, Bidders responding to both must submit a different bid proposal for each service domain.  
Q23) Does the six page limit for the Description of Proposed Services apply to each separate proposal?
A23) Each Description of Proposed Services has its own page limit.
Q24) What kind of formatting should Bidders use to write their bid proposal?  Should the bid proposal be single spaced or double spaced?
A24) The County prefers that Bidders use a 12-point font size, Arial or Times New Roman font style, single space line spacing, 8.5x11 page size, and one inch margins.  However, deferring from this format will in no way affect the evaluation of your proposal.
Q25) Should Bidders use a specific format for graphics and charts? 
A25) Bidders should use their discretion when formatting graphics and charts.
Q26) Can the County provide the age breakdown of the target population? 
A26) The age breakdown of the target population is as follows:

	Age Range
	Percentage

	18-25
	17%

	26-35
	35%

	36-45
	24%

	46-55
	16%

	56-65
	7%

	66+
	1%


The above are percentages as of Feb 29, 2016.  
Q27) Is the County going to provide a breakdown of where the clients live or are Bidders supposed to follow the breakdown that is provided in the RFP?
A27) Page 4 of the RFP, Section A (INTENT) states:

Due to the geographic distribution of the target population, the Probation Department must ensure that employment and education services procured through this RFP adequately cover all areas of the County.  In an effort to serve the entire target population, the Probation Department has listed five separate geographic service regions in the table below representing the distribution of the target population residing in a specific city or within a region exclusive of a particular city.  Bidders are strongly encouraged to take the distribution of the target population into consideration in their bid.

	Major City/Region
	Approximate Percentage of Target Population

	Oakland
	50%

	Hayward
	15%

	South County (excl. Hayward)
	20%

	North County (excl. Oakland)
	10%

	East County
	5%


The percentages provided on the RFP reflect where the target population lives.

Q28) Can the County provide census data regarding the target population for the five County regions, in numbers, as opposed to approximate percentages that are listed on page 4 of RFP?  What is the exact source of these approximate percentages listed on page 4 the RFP?

A28) Unfortunately, the County cannot provide census data.  The source of the provided percentage data is from the Alameda County Probation Department (ACPD) database which represents clients being supervised by the department. 

Q29) Can the County provide other information regarding the target population (e.g., number of clients per geographic region that the County is looking to serve, etc.)?  Is there an estimate of how many people the County is looking to serve through this contract? 
A29) Unfortunately, the County can only provide the percentage of the target population by age group, and not the number of population at this time.  The vendor shall provide the total number of clients to be served, based upon submitted costs.  Bidders should refer to the table on page 4 of the RFP which includes the percentage of the population by areas of the County.  

Q30) Page 7 of Exhibit A-BID RESPONSE PACKET, items 8, 9 and 10 of the Employment Services Budget Form, states:
	
	Employment  Service
	Estimated Number of Clients to be Served
	Cost per Client per Service2

	8. 
	Job Retention 30 Days
	
	$1,705.00

	9. 
	Job Retention 90 Days
	
	$2,040.00

	10. 
	Job Retention 180 Days
	
	$2,500.00

	
	Totals
	
	


Can the amounts listed for job retention for 30, 90, and 180 days apply to the same client?
A30) Yes, the amounts listed for job retention for 30, 90, and 180 days can apply to the same client.

Q31) Is it up to the Contractor to decide what type of assessment to be used or is there a preference by the County?
A31) Yes, it is up to the Contractor to decide what type of assessment it wants to use for Education and Employment services.  The County is moving towards a Validated and Risk Needs Assessment, and that information will be shared with Contractors in a case plan.

Q32) Are Contractors expected to serve the entire population?  Are Contractors supposed to have physical locations throughout the County or are they expected to serve the target population throughout the County?
A32) Yes, Contractors are expected to serve the entire population by ensuring countywide access to their services.  The County expects Contractors to serve participants throughout the County.  The County does not expect Contractors to give clients a bus pass and ask them to routinely travel from Oakland to Fremont for services.  There is an expectation that there will be collaboration and partnerships between providers throughout the County in order for Contractors to have a real presence and to make the services accessible to the clients as much as possible, unless the Contractor has an existing physical presence in areas throughout the County. 

Q33) Is the County going to provide a list of possible clients to Contractors?
A33) No, the County will not provide a list of possible clients.  The County will provide direct referrals to Contractors.
Q34) Are Contractors allowed to make contact with someone that was referred to them for Employment and Education services if the referral did not come from the County? 
A34) No, all referrals must come from the Probation Officers.  If a Contractor has a client that is interested in receiving the Education or Employment services listed under this RFP, the Contractor should ask him to contact his Probation Officer.
Q35) What should Contractors do if they are working with clients that are incarcerated?  Are people that are incarcerated not included in the target population of this RFP?
A35) Yes, it is the County’s intent for Bidders to have access to Santa Rita Jail and start services there, however the ultimate referral will come from the Probation Officer.
Q36) Can the County let Bidders know what the best use of funds is?  Are Contractors allowed to give participants stipends for the Education Program? 
A36) The County expects Bidders to tell the County what they think is the best use of funds to advance Education opportunities and access for the population.  Contractors can provide stipends for Education, and Bidders that decide to do so should include in their proposal how the use of stipends will help the participants stay in the Education track. 
Q37) Is the County going to use any performance measurements?
A37) Yes, the County will provide the performance measurements to Contractors as part of the contract. 

Q38) How many clients does the County anticipate that will be referred to Contractors during the two year contract?
A38) The County cannot answer this question in this Addendum. 

Q39) Should Bidders propose the budget and the program plan for two years or for one year?
A39) Bidders should propose a budget and program plan for two years.
Q40) Is there a possibility for renewal after the two-year contract ends?
A40) Yes, there is a possibility for renewal after the two-year contract ends based on performance and availability of funds. 

Q41) What are the County’s expectations of the outcomes and objectives after the County has awarded the contract?  What is the County looking for in the bid proposals?  Also, what is realistic and what is not?
A41) If Bidders look at Employment, Bidders can see what the performance measures are, and the main goal which is to have people employed and keep their jobs.  For Education, it depends on the assessment, and the County is requesting Bidders to utilize assessment- driven services.  Education is very individualized, and the County wants Bidders to do an assessment of the client and find out what the client needs are in the Education domain.
Q42) If a Bidder is a current provider, can the Bidder use Probation as a reference? 
A42) If a Bidder lists Probation as a reference, the reference should be for the contract administrator.  The reference cannot be for anyone on the CSC.
Q43) Is the County going to award one contract per service domain?  Should the proposals be for the entire amount or is it alright for a Bidder to scale down the proposal if it wants to only bid on part of the service domain? 
A43) The County encourages Bidders to write their application as if it would be the single application selected, therefore Bidders are encouraged to collaborate.  The County is trying, as much as possible, to build on existing services and existing providers to create a network between providers to generate greater access for the population.  However, the County does reserve the right to award to more than one Bidder if there is a reason to do so.
Q44) Is this RFP a decrease in funding allocation in comparison to the previous RFP?
A44) For Employment it is an increase, and it is the same amount for Education.  For Education, the County allocated funds in the past, however the funds were not awarded to Contractors.
Q45) How much is the County allocating for Employment?  How much did the County allocate for Employment before?
A45) For this RFP, the County is allocating $3,000,000 for Employment.  Previously, the County allocated approximately $1,750,000 for similar Employment services. 

Q46) Is there any age specifications? 
A46) What a Bidder can expect to see about age range is that it is going to be consistent with where Probation has identified the highest concentration of the realign population needs in Alameda County.  There is an estimated fewer number in the target population, and potentially less concentration of the target population ages 18-20 in Alameda County. 
Q47) Can government agencies (e.g., City government) be a prime bidder for this RFP? 

A47) Yes.  Government agencies can bid as prime for this RFP.
Q48) Will the prime Bidder service all five regions within the County? 
A48) Yes, the County is looking for the prime Bidder to be able to service all five regions in full capacity.  Both for Education and Employment, there is tremendous emphasis on the ability of the Bidder to cover the entire County.  The County wants to be able to see that the Bidder can serve the entire County, and they can do it in such a way that creates real accessibility for the clients.
Q49) Does the prime Bidder have to demonstrate the capacity to provide the services for the entire County and not just one region?   
A49) Yes, prime Bidders have to demonstrate the capacity to provide the services for the entire County and not just one region.
Q50) Would the subcontractor have to collaborate with someone who will be the prime Bidder?  Will the County help facilitate that at all?  
A50) The County cannot determine who the Bidder has a contractual agreement with, nor can the County tell a prime bidder who to partner with.  If a Bidder is looking to find other SLEB partners, there is a SLEB database online.  Attached to this Addendum is a list of attendees from both bidders conferences; Bidders are encouraged to use this list, along with the SLEB database, to find collaboration partners.

Q51) In regards to GENERAL REQUIREMENTS on page 8 of the RFP, how does a Bidder prove that it received training on the types of intervention(s) listed (e.g., evidence-based correctional practice, etc)?
A51) It should be evident in the Description of Proposed Services what practices the Bidder is using in the delivery of their intervention(s).  

The following participants attended the Bidders Conferences:

	
	Company Name / Address
	Representative
	Contact Information

	1. 
	KRA Corp

22100 Princeton Street H-2

Hayward, CA 94545
	Pamela Carnes
	Phone: (510) 306-5653

	
	
	
	E-Mail: pcarnes@kra.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	2. 
	Union City Youth and Family Services

34009 Alvarado-Niles Road

Union City, CA 94587
	Patricia Anadesco
	Phone: (510) 675-5617

	
	
	
	E-Mail: patriciaa@unioncity.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	3. 
	Union City Youth and Family Services

3400 Alvarado-Niles Road

Union City, CA 94587
	Richard Martinez
	Phone: (510) 675-5363

	
	
	
	E-Mail: ricardom@unioncity.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	4. 
	Civicorps

101 Myrtle Street

Oakland, CA 94607
	Shannon Bowen
	Phone: (510) 992-7840

	
	
	
	E-Mail: shannon.bowen@cvcorps.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	5. 
	Civicorps

101 Myrtle Street

Oakland, CA 94607
	Michele Moore
	Phone: (510) 992-2832

	
	
	
	E-Mail: michele.moore@cvcorps.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	6. 
	Timelist Group

1328 Decoto Road, #124

Union City, CA 94587


	Earl Simms 
	Phone: (510) 967-7573

	
	
	
	E-Mail: earl@timelistgroup.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	7. 
	Healthy Communities, Inc.

2580 San Pablo Avenue

Oakland, CA 94612
	Raymond Lankford
	Phone: (510) 502-3144

	
	
	
	E-Mail: raymond.lankford@healthycommunities.us

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	8. 
	TriCities Community Development

37620 Filbert Street

Newark, CA 94560
	Pastor Horacio Jones
	Phone: (925) 812-0878

	
	
	
	E-Mail: pastorjones@tricitiescdc.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	9. 
	Preventive Care Pathways

5709 Market Street

Oakland, CA 94608
	Genine L. Turner
	Phone: (510) 423-8179

	
	
	
	E-Mail: genineturner@gmail.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	10. 
	Healthy Oakland

2580 San Pablo Avenue

Oakland, CA 94612
	Tonja Fuller Bryant
	Phone: (510) 432-3522

	
	
	
	E-Mail: tonjafullerbryant@ymail.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	11. 
	Soulciety

16335 E 14th Street

San Leandro, CA 94578
	Leah Fortin
	Phone: (510) 501-6490

	
	
	
	E-Mail: leahfortin@gmail.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	12. 
	Youth Employment Partnership

2300 International Boulevard

Oakland, CA 94601
	Justin Zerber
	Phone: (510) 533-3447

	
	
	
	E-Mail: jzerber@yep.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	13. 
	Five Keys Charter School

70 Oak Grove Street

San Francisco, CA 94107
	Patricia Richard
	Phone: (415) 297-9887

	
	
	
	E-Mail: patriciar@fivekeyscharter.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	14. 
	Building Opportunities for Self-Sufficiency

1918 University Avenue, #2A

Berkeley, CA 94704
	Donald Frazier
	Phone: (510) 649-1930

	
	
	
	E-Mail: dfrazier@self-sufficiency.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	15. 
	Five Keys Charter School

70 Oak Grove Street

San Francisco, CA 94107
	Laurie Rubin
	Phone: (415) 470-6532

	
	
	
	E-Mail: laurier@fivekeyscharter.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	16. 
	Five Keys Charter School

70 Oak Grove Street

San Francisco, CA 94107
	Jessica Nowlan
	Phone: (510) 689-7310

	
	
	
	E-Mail: jessicanowlan@gmail.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No


	
	Company Name / Address
	Representative
	Contact Information

	17. 
	Cypress Mandela Training

977 66th Avenue

Oakland, CA 94621
	Douglas Butler
	Phone: (510) 208-7350

	
	
	
	E-Mail:      

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	18. 
	Cypress Mandela Training

977 66th Avenue

Oakland, CA 94621
	Eric Shanks
	Phone: (510) 208-7350

	
	
	
	E-Mail: eshanks@cypressmandela.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	19. 
	Five Keys Charter School

70 Oak Grove Street

San Francisco, CA 94107
	Elyse Graham
	Phone: (415) 410-8530

	
	
	
	E-Mail: elyseg@fivekeyscharter.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	20. 
	Center for Employment Opportunities

464 7th Street

Oakland, CA 94607
	Lonnie Tuck
	Phone:      

	
	
	
	E-Mail: ltuck@ceoworks.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	21. 
	Rubicon Programs

2000 San Pablo Avenue

Oakland, CA 94612
	Anna Keller
	Phone: (415) 724-3168

	
	
	
	E-Mail: annak@rubiconprograms.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	22. 
	Roots Community Health Center

9925 International Boulevard, Suite #5

Oakland, CA 94603
	Aquil Naji
	Phone: (510) 815-3183

	
	
	
	E-Mail: aquil@rootsclinic.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	23. 
	Youth Uprising

8711 MacArthur Boulevard

Oakland, CA 94605
	Samantha Sandoval
	Phone: (510) 777-9909

	
	
	
	E-Mail: ssandoval@youthuprising.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	24. 
	Oakland Private Industry Council, Inc. 

1212 Broadway, Suite #100

Oakland, CA 94612
	Richard de Jauregui
	Phone: (510) 768-4476

	
	
	
	E-Mail: rdejauregui@oaklandpic.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      


	
	Company Name / Address
	Representative
	Contact Information

	25. 
	Building Opportunities for Self-Sufficiency

1918 University Avenue, Suite 2A

Berkeley, CA 94704
	Christine Lias
	Phone:      

	
	
	
	E-Mail: clias@self-sufficiency.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      


	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	26. 
	Oakland Private Industry Council, Inc. 

1212 Broadway, Suite #100

Oakland, CA 94612
	Charles H. Turner
	Phone: (510) 768-4485

	
	
	
	E-Mail: cturner@oaklandpic.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor:      

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB:      

	27. 
	Open Gate, Inc. 

P.O. Box 22812

Oakland, CA 94609
	Mildred McKinney
	Phone: (510) 292-1181

	
	
	
	E-Mail: mildred@opengateinc.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	28. 
	Open Gate, Inc. 

P.O. Box 22812

Oakland, CA 94609
	Robin Ortiz
	Phone: (617) 759-8605

	
	
	
	E-Mail: robin@opengateinc.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	29. 
	Open Gate, Inc. 

P.O. Box 22812

Oakland, CA 94609
	Denise Richardson
	Phone: (510) 638-7113

	
	
	
	E-Mail: denise@opengateinc.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	30. 
	Roots Community Health Center

9925 International Boulevard, Suite #5

Oakland, CA 94603
	Noha Aboelata
	Phone: (510) 832-5035

	
	
	
	E-Mail: drnoha@rootsclinic.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor:      

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	31. 
	Preventive Care Pathways

5709 Market Street

Oakland, CA 94608
	H. Geoffrey Watson, M.D.
	Phone: 888-288-8239

	
	
	
	E-Mail: hgeoffreywatson@aol.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: 

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	32. 
	Center for Employment Opportunities

464 7th Street

Oakland, CA 94612
	Aliko Carter
	Phone: (212) 422-4430 ext 1129

	
	
	
	E-Mail: acarter@ceoworks.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: 

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	33. 
	Building Opportunities for Self-Sufficiency

1918 University Avenue, Suite 2A

Berkeley, CA 94704
	Sonja Fitz
	Phone: (510)649-1930 ext 1008

	
	
	
	E-Mail: sfitz@self-sufficiency.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: 

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	34. 
	Building Opportunities for Self-Sufficiency

1918 University Avenue, Suite 2A

Berkeley, CA 94704
	Dennis McCray
	Phone: (510) 419-0669

	
	
	
	E-Mail: dmccray@self-sufficiency.org

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: 

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes


EXHIBIT C

VENDOR LIST

RFP No. 901453 – Direct Service Grants: Education and Employment Services
Below is the Vendor Bid List for this project consisting of vendors who have been issued a copy of this RFP.  This Vendor Bid List is being provided for informational purposes to assist bidders in making contact with other businesses as needed to develop local small and emerging business subcontracting relationships to meet the requirements of the Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) Program: http://www.acgov.org/gsa/departments/purchasing/policy/slebpref.htm. 
This RFP Addendum is being issued to all vendors on the Vendor Bid List; the following revised vendor list includes contact information for each vendor attendee at the Networking/Bidders Conferences.
	RFP No. 901453 - Direct Service Grants: Education and Employment Services

	Business Name
	Contact Name
	Contact Phone
	Address
	City
	State
	Email

	Abode Services
	 
	510-657-7409
	40849 Fremont Boulevard
	Fremont
	CA
	lchicoine@abodeservices.org

	Acts Full Gospel
	George Matthews
	 
	 
	 
	 
	georgematthews@gmail.com

	Alameda County Health Care for the Homeless Program
	 
	510-532-1930
	1900 Fruitvale Avenue, #3E
	Oakland
	CA
	achchp@gmail.com

	Alameda County Office of Urban Male Health
	 
	510-268-2282
	1000 Broadway
	Oakland
	CA
	michael.shaw@acgov.org

	Alameda County Workforce Investment Board
	 
	510 259-3836
	24100 Amador Street, 6th Floor
	Hayward
	CA
	Marybeth.McCarthy@acgov.org

	Alameda One Stop Career Center
	 
	510-748-2208
	College of Alameda
	Alameda
	CA
	mgoldberg@peralta.edu

	All of Us or None
	 
	415-625-7042
	1540 Market Street
	San Francisco
	CA
	jerry@prisonerswithchildren.org

	Allen Temple Health & Social Services
	 
	510-544-8908
	8501 International Boulevard
	Oakland
	CA
	james4health@yahoo.com

	America Works
	 
	510-891-9100
	1212 Broadway, 11th Floor
	Oakland
	CA
	mericksen@Americaworks.com

	Anka Behavioral Health
	Adeel Ahmad
	925-698-1669
	1850 Gateway Boulevard, Suite 900
	Concord
	CA
	aahmad@ankabhi.org

	Bay Area Black United Fund
	 
	510-763-7270
	1212 Broadway, Suite 810
	Oakland
	CA
	wcarter@babuf.org

	Berkeley Food and Housing Program
	 
	510-649-4965
	2362 Bancroft Way
	Berkeley
	CA
	ggreen@bfhp.org

	Berkeley Youth Alternatives
	Kevin Williams
	510-845-9010
	1255 Allston Way
	Berkeley
	CA
	kwilliams@byaonline.org

	Bonita House Inc.
	 
	510-809-1780
	1422 Harrison Street
	Oakland
	CA
	mark@bonitahouse.org

	Building Futures with Women and Children
	 
	510-357-0205
	1395 Bancroft Avenue, #13
	San Leandro
	CA
	sthomas@bfwc.org

	Building Opportunities for Self-Sufficiency (BOSS)
	Donald Frazier
	(510) 649-1930
	1918 University Avenue, Suite 2A
	Berkeley
	CA
	dfrazier@self-sufficiency.org

	Building Opportunities for Self-Sufficiency (BOSS)
	Sonja Fitz
	510-649-1930
	1918 University Avenue, Suite 2A
	Berkeley
	CA
	sfitzl@self-sufficiency.org

	Building Opportunities for Self-Sufficiency (BOSS)
	Dennis McCray
	(510) 419-0669
	1600 San Pablo Avenue
	Oakland
	CA
	dmccray@self-sufficiency.org

	Building Opportunities for Self-Sufficiency (BOSS)
	Christine Lias
	(510) 649-1930
	1918 University Avenue, Suite 2A 
	Berkeley
	CA
	clias@self-sufficiency.org

	CALPEP
	 
	510.874-7850
	2811 Adeline Street
	Oakland
	CA
	glocktheone@aol.com

	Center for Employment Opportunities
	 
	510-251-2240
	1212 Broadway
	Oakland
	CA
	bheiser@ceoworks.org

	Center for Employment Opportunities
	Frances Bloom
	510-251-2240
	1212 Broadway, Floor 17
	Oakland
	CA
	fbloom@ceoworks.org

	Center for Employment Opportunities
	Lonnie Tuck
	 
	464 7th Street
	Oakland
	CA
	ltuck@ceoworks.org

	Center for Employment Opportunities
	Aliko Carter
	212-422-4430 ext1129
	464 7th Street
	Oakland
	CA
	acarter@ceoworks.org

	Center Point, Inc.
	 
	415-492-4444
	135 Paul Drive
	San Rafael
	CA
	MHering@cpinc.org

	Centerforce
	 
	510-834-3457
	1904 Franklin Street
	Oakland
	CA
	cburton@centerforce.org

	Chabot College
	 
	510-723-7502
	25555 Hesperian Boulevard
	Hayward
	CA
	rmendez@chabotcollege.edu

	Civicorps
	 
	510-992-7800
	101 Myrtle Street
	Oakland
	CA
	info@cvcorps.org

	Civicorps
	Shannon Bowen
	(510) 992-7840
	101 Myrtle Street
	Oakland
	CA
	shannon.bowen@cvcorps.org

	Civicorps
	Michele Moore
	(510) 992-2832
	101 Myrtle Street
	Oakland
	CA
	michele.moore@cvcorps.org

	Contra Costa County Office Of Education
	 
	510-942-3388
	77 Santa Barbara Road
	Pleasant Hill
	CA
	Ataylor@cccoe.k12.ca.us

	Crisis Support Services of Alameda County
	Nancy Salamy
	510-420-2460
	PO Box 3120
	Oakland
	CA
	nsalamy@crisissupport.org

	Cypress Mandela Training
	Douglas Butler
	(510) 208-7350
	977 66th Avenue
	Oakland
	CA
	 

	Cypress Mandela Training
	Eric Shanks
	(510) 208-7350
	977 66th Avenue
	Oakland
	CA
	eshanks@cypressmandela.org

	Department of Human Services - Oakland
	 
	510-238-4978
	150 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 4340
	Oakland
	CA
	dsimmons@oaklandnet.com

	Dynamic Educational Systems, Inc. (DESI)
	 
	415-277-2400
	351 H Avenue
	San Francisco
	CA
	ginny.shoemaker@exodyne.com

	East Bay Asian Youth Center (EBAYC)
	 
	510-533-1092
	2025 East 12th Street
	Oakland
	CA
	junji@ebayc.org

	East Bay Community Law Center
	 
	510-548-4040
	2921 Adeline Street
	Berkeley
	CA
	ehersh@ebclc.org

	East Bay community Recovery Project
	 
	510 446-7100
	2579 San Pablo Avenue
	Oakland
	CA
	ljessie@ebcrp.org

	East Bay Youth & Family Initiatives/EBCS
	 
	925-961-8045
	1401 Almond Avenue, Room 20
	Livermore
	CA
	info@eastbayfi.org


	East Oakland Community Project
	 
	510-532-3211
	7515 International Boulevard
	Oakland
	CA
	wendyujackson@gmail.com

	
	
	
	
	
	
	kimp@eocp.net

	EC Reems Community Services
	Maisha House-Asmota
	510-568-5576
	8401 MacArthur Boulevard
	Oakland
	CA
	ecreemscommunityservices@yahoo.com

	Eden I&R, Inc.
	 
	510-537-2710
	570 B Street
	Hayward
	CA
	bbernstein@edenir.org

	Family Paths, Inc.
	 
	510-893-9230
	1727 Martin Luther King Jr. Way
	Oakland
	CA
	info@familypaths.org

	Family Service Counseling Center
	Tricia Harris
	530-483-6715
	2208 San Leandro Boulevard
	San Leandro
	CA
	info@fscc.org

	Five Keys Charter School
	Patricia Richard
	(415) 297-9887
	70 Oak Grove Street
	San Francisco
	CA
	patriciar@fivekeyscharter.org

	Five Keys Charter School
	Laurie Rubin
	(415) 470-6532
	70 Oak Grove Street
	San Francisco
	CA
	laurier@fivekeyscharter.org

	Five Keys Charter School
	Jessica Nowlan
	(510) 689-7310
	70 Oak Grove Street
	San Francisco
	CA
	jessicanowlan@gmail.com

	Five Keys Charter School
	Elyse Graham
	(415) 410-8530
	70 Oak Grove Street
	San Francisco
	CA
	elyseg@fivekeyscharter.org

	Healthy Communities, Inc.
	Raymond Lankford
	(510) 502-3144
	2580 San Pablo Avenue
	Oakland
	CA
	raymond.lankford@healthycommunities.us

	Healthy Oakland
	 
	510-692-7840
	2580 San Pablo Avenue
	Oakland
	CA
	donald.williams@healthycommunities.us

	Healthy Oakland
	Tonja Fuller Bryant
	(510) 432-3522
	2580 San Pablo Avenue
	Oakland
	CA
	tonjafullerbryant@ymail.com

	HR Management
	Clarence Hunt
	510-267-0115
	462 Elwood Avenue, Suite 9
	Oakland
	CA
	cahuntjr@sbcglobal.net

	Institute for Bevaioral Change
	 
	909-224-4839
	P.O.Box
	Oakland
	CA
	wmorr58@msn.com

	Inter-City Services, Inc.
	Mansaur Id-Deen
	510-655-3552
	3269 Adeline Street
	Berkeley
	CA
	middeen@icsworks.com

	KRA Corp
	Pamela Carnes
	(510) 306-5653
	22100 Princeton Street H-2
	Hayward
	CA
	pcarnes@kra.com

	Lawyers' Committee for Civil Rights of the San Francisco Bay Area
	 
	415-543-9444
	131 Steuart Street
	San Francisco
	CA
	info@lccr.com

	Leaders In Community Alternatives, Inc. (LCA)
	 
	415-546-5222
	1035 Market Street, Suite 550
	San Francisco
	CA
	info@lcaservices.com

	Men of Valor Academy
	Doug Butler
	510 567 1308
	6118 International Boulevard
	Oakland
	CA
	dglsbtlr@yahoo.com

	Oakland House of Ruth
	 
	510-562-1593
	7801 MacArthur Boulevard
	Oakland
	CA
	katherineh187@gmail.com

	Oakland Private Industry Council, Inc. 
	Pam Salsedo
	510-768-4403
	1212 Broadway, Street #300
	Oakland
	CA
	psalsedo@oaklandpic.org

	Oakland Private Industry Council, Inc. 
	Richard de Jauregui
	(510) 768-4476
	1212 Broadway, Suite #100
	Oakland
	CA
	rdejauregui@oaklandpic.org

	Oakland Private Industry Council, Inc. 
	Charles H. Turner
	(510) 768-4485
	1212 Broadway, Suite #100
	Oakland
	CA
	cturner@oaklandpic.org

	Open Gate, Inc. 
	Mildred McKinney
	(510) 292-1181
	P.O. Box 22812
	Oakland
	CA
	mildred@opengateinc.com

	Open Gate, Inc. 
	Robin Ortiz
	(617) 759-8605
	P.O. Box 22812
	Oakland
	CA
	robin@opengateinc.com

	Open Gate, Inc. 
	Denise Richardson
	(510) 638-7113
	P.O. Box 22812
	Oakland
	CA
	denise@opengateinc.com

	Options Recovery Services
	 
	510 666 9552
	1931 Center Street
	Berkeley
	CA
	dcoady@optionsrecovery.org

	Parolee Education Program-CCCOE
	 
	925-942-5304
	77 Santa Barbara Road
	Pleasant Hill
	CA
	jsanford@cccoe.k12.ca.us

	Phoenix Community Services, Inc.
	 
	510-472-3343
	850 West Grand Avenue
	Oakland
	CA
	gmccomb@aol.com

	Preventive Care Pathways
	Genine L. Turner
	(510) 423-8179
	5709 Market Street
	Oakland
	CA
	genineturner@gmail.com

	Preventive Care Pathways
	H. Geoffrey Watson, M.D.
	888-288-8239
	5709 Market Street
	Oakland
	CA
	hgeoffreywatson@aol.com

	PUEBLO
	 
	510-535-2525
	3528 Foothill Boulevard
	Oakland
	CA
	pueblo@peopleunited.org

	Regynesis Health Services
	 
	510-632-5000
	9925 International Boulevard
	Oakland
	CA
	regynesis@yahoo.com

	Roots Community Health Center
	Aquil Naji
	(510) 815-3183
	9925 International Boulevard, Suite #5
	Oakland
	CA
	aquil@rootsclinic.org

	Roots Community Health Center
	Noha Aboelata
	(510) 832-5035
	9925 International Boulevard, Suite #5
	Oakland
	CA
	drnoha@rootsclinic.org

	Rubicon Programs
	 
	510-412-1706
	2500 Bissell Avenue
	Richmond
	CA
	robh@rubiconprograms.org

	Rubicon Programs
	Anna Keller
	(415) 724-3168
	2000 San Pablo Avenue
	Oakland
	CA
	annak@rubiconprograms.org

	Seventh Step
	Bruce Banks
	510-278-0230
	475 Medford Ave.
	Hayward
	CA
	seventhstep@comcast.net

	Soulciety
	Leah Fortin
	(510) 501-6490
	16335 E 14th Street
	San Leandro
	CA
	leahfortin@gmail.com

	South Hayward Parish
	 
	510-785-3663
	27287 Patrick Avenue
	Hayward
	CA
	 

	St. Vincent de Paul of Alameda County
	Carolyn Graham
	510-877-9251
	9235 San Leandro Street
	Oakland
	CA
	cgraham@svdp-alameda.org

	St. Vincent de Paul of Alameda County
	Christine Lias
	510-877-9251
	9235 San Leandro Street
	Oakland
	CA
	clias@svdp-alameda.org

	The Gamble Institute
	 
	510-868-4321
	2272 San Pablo Avenue
	Oakland
	CA
	info@gambleinstitute.org

	The Hayward Center for Education and Careers/Youth Enrichment Services
	 
	510-293-8595
	22100 Princeton Street
	Hayward
	CA
	vewing@has.edu

	Timelist Group
	Earl Simms 
	(510) 967-7573
	1328 Decoto Road, #124
	Union City
	CA
	earl@timelistgroup.org

	TOLBERT & ASSOCIATES
	 
	510-655-5437
	5106 Genoa Street
	Oakland
	CA
	kids@civicpride.net

	TriCities Community Development
	Pastor Horacio Jones
	(925) 812-0878
	37620 Filbert Street
	Newark
	CA
	pastorjones@tricitiescdc.com

	TriCities One Stop Career Center
	 
	510-742-2323
	39399 Cherry Street
	Newark
	CA
	yzeng@ohlone.edu

	Tri-Valley One Stop Career Center
	 
	925-485-5262
	5020 Franklin Drive
	Pleasanton
	CA
	nmirande@clpccd.org

	Union City Youth and Family Services
	Patricia Anadesco
	(510) 675-5617
	34009 Alvarado-Niles Road
	Union City
	CA
	patriciaa@unioncity.org

	Union City Youth and Family Services
	Richard Martinez
	(510) 675-5363
	34009 Alvarado-Niles Road
	Union City
	CA
	ricardom@unioncity.org

	Urojas Community Services
	Rev. Dr. A. Auria Lewis
	510-666-5139
	8801 International Boulevard
	Oakland
	CA
	aurialewis@yahoo.com

	Vetcoach
	 
	510-562-9615
	5926 Mauritania Avenue
	Oakland
	CA
	mennis2@sbcglobal.net

	Volunteers of America Bay Area
	 
	510-663-4546
	672 13th Street
	Oakland
	CA
	jkidd@voaba.org

	Youth Employment Partnership
	Justin Zerber
	(510) 533-3447
	2300 International Boulevard
	Oakland
	CA
	jzerber@yep.org

	Youth Justice Institute
	 
	415-361-4600
	436 14th Street
	Oakland
	CA
	maria@yjinstitute.org

	Youth Uprising
	Samantha Sandoval
	(510) 777-9909
	8711 MacArthur Boulevard
	Oakland
	CA
	ssandoval@youthuprising.org
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